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A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Homes
With 2016 Photographs by Annabelle Hollis

Introduction

In 2016, an ambitious young woman, Annabelle Hollis, went on a photographic
tour to record a previous narrative of the Stillwater Arts and Humanities Coun-
cil as part of a 4-H citizenship project. The prior work, Stillwater Arts and Hu-
manities Council’s A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Homes, was a tour of
early homes in Stillwater as they remained in 1975.

The Payne County Historical Review is pleased to reprint the narrative of the
earlier Heritage Trail publication describing the homes as they were in 1975
now enriched with Annabelle’s current day photographs. Some houses were in-
cluded in the original tour with the year the house was built although no infor-
mation was provided regarding their original history.

In the forty years since the original publication, the landscape has changed con-
siderably. Many of the original homes are gone; some have been renovated ex-
tensively. Sometimes it is difficult to determine what has happened in the inter-
vening years. When viewing the photos (or current site), it is important to keep
in mind that the description was written in 1975 based on what the structure
looked like at that time, but the photos reflect the site today

Three of the structures have been added to the National Register of Historic
Places: Citizens Bank (107 East Ninth), the Frick home (1016 South West), and
the Berry home (501 South Duck). The Berry home was listed in Heritage Trail
under the name of its original builder, Marshall Edwards.

All of the original comments from 1975 are included here even if no picture is
provided because it appears the original structure was no longer existed. The
original driving directions have been replaced by grouping the homes in four
quadrants: Northeast, Southeast, Southwest, and Northwest of Main and Sixth
Streets.
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A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Homes

Stillwater Arts and Humanities Council
Spring, 1975

Preface to A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Homes

In the spring of 1970, the Arts and Humanities Council distributed a pamphlet
prepared by Miss Madeline Webb. In the fall of 1974, it was suggested that it
would be desirable to redistribute this pamphlet. The 1970 edition, edited and
corrected, is being presented in this new format. However, the basic document
remains that prepared by Miss Webb.

Acknowledgment

The Arts and Humanities Council of Stillwater, Inc., wishes to express its grati-
tude to Miss Madeline Webb, who almost singlehandedly prepared the brochure
presented in the Spring of 1970.

SPECIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT must go to the following people for their help
with information for HERITAGE TRAIL, 1970; LeeVera Pepin, Cora Cheney
Burdick, Harriet Oschman Ross, Ward Hays, Sam Myers, Sally Whittenberg
Terbush, Marguerite Neerman Lahman, Mallee Glass Bilyeu, Vera Glass Webb,
Lulu Tourtellotte McClure, The Reverend L. C. Carter, C. Ray Smith, Jim
Ritchey, Violet Frick Schroeder, John F. Houck, Frank L. Jardot, Eda Donart
Millard, Ruth Goodholm Donart, Martha Berry Covey, Mammie Lytton, and
Mr. and Mrs. Elmer Swim. A special thank you to the Housing and Interior De-
sign Students, past and present, from the College of Home Economics, OSU.

A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Houses

A frontier society is too busy carving its name on a new land to have much rev-
erence for the past. It is interested in the future, as it should be, but much valu-
able historical information is sacrificed along the way in the name of progress.

Three quarters of a century ago Stillwater was a part of the frontier. This
sprawling town was rushing pell-mell into the twentieth century, with little
thought of preserving its early heritage. Happily, we still have among us some
people with long memories who are knowledgeable about Stillwater’s early
years, and it is to them that the Stillwater Arts and Humanities Heritage Com-
mittee has turned for information about life in Stillwater at the turn of the cen-
tury.
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701 South Lewis
NICELY HOUSE

This two-story white frame house was built by Sam Nicely, owner of one of
Stillwater’s first saloons in the 1890’s. Sam Myers, Sr., was the second owner,
and it was in this house that Sam Myers, a former City Commissioner, was
born. In recent years the house has been known as Friendly House, a way-
station for senior citizens. It is presently owned by the city.

624 South Lowry
LYTTON HOUSE

Built in 1892, the house is still occupied by members of the original family.
Originally a two-story four room house, with a porch and entrance facing Sev-
enth Avenue. The family came from Richmond, Virginia, to Kansas, and thence
to Stillwater, and pieces of furniture are in this home which were brought from
the home in Richmond. The owner’s wife, Mr. Almara Lytton, left a widow in
need of a livelihood, began to take in boarders and roomers. By 1912, in order
to accommodate her roomers, she had added on the house, and it then covered
as much ground as it does today; however, it was in 1924 that the second floor
front addition was built. Today the house contains twenty-one rooms, two halls,
four baths, and is occupied by Mrs. Mamie Lytton and her grandson, Charles
Dale, who continues to rent and look after the various rental areas within this
house.

(We would like to note that the son of the first Mrs. Lytton built the building at
909 South Main Street where he was in the hardware business, and for a num-
ber of years the entire third floor was used as the residence of this family. To-
day this building is the home of the Nelson Furniture Company).
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715 South Duck
MURPHY HOUSE

A physician, Dr. J. B. Murphy, built this house upon bringing his family to
Stillwater. This is now the home of the Gladys Kinyon Beauty Shop.

617 South Duck

SWOPE HOUSE

This house was built in 1900 by Mayor Harry Swope. Scott Chandler bought it,
and the Chandler family moved in on March 7, 1903. Until she died recently,
Miss Emma Chandler resided in the home purchase by her father seventy-two
years ago.

Duck and Eighth, Southwest Corner
BERRY HOUSE

Will Berry, father of the late Tom and Jim Berry and founder of the Stillwater
National Bank, built and occupied this home in the 1890’s. The house remains
in the Berry family.

620 South West
BUDMONTH HOUSE

Built by Arabell Budmonth in 1895.

701 South West
DONART HOUSE

Built in 1893 by James H. and Hattie Alice Donart. This house was owned and
occupied by the Albert Webb family from the middle of the twenties until 1968,
at which time the property was sold to G.W. Redington.
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314 South Lowry
ROLSTON HOUSE

Built in 1891 by Mrs. Rolston, a widow, who, with her son, Collin, and two black
boys brought up in the Rolston home, came to Stillwater from Wichita, Kansas.
(We learned that the mother of these two boys was killed en route to Stillwater
by a runaway team of horses and wagon, which knocked her down and ran over
her. We speak of this tragedy in order to remind our readers of the many strug-
gles and hardships suffered by those who traveled over no more than rail-like
roads into this frontier country at the turn of the century). All the materials
that went into building this house were brought by wagon from Wichita. Mr. C.
Ray Smith said that years ago when he was working on this house, the walnut
lap-siding which he was removing was so hard that it would resound, ringing
just as clearly as a bell.

THIS COMPLETES THE HERITAGE TRAIL

We hope you have enjoyed this drive along Stillwater’s Heritage Trail. If
you are interest in still exploring, perhaps not today, but on some sunny Sun-
day afternoon, we are adding a few other points of historical interest.

OTHER POINTS OF HISTORICAL INTEREST

JARDOT BRICK YARD.

The Jardot bricks were made from a sandy clay found on the claim staked by
Mr. Jardot in 1889. This claim extended approximately from the north corner
on West Street and Twelfth and Western. Being a stone mason he took particu-
lar note of various types of soil. He discovered a very good quality of sandy
clay—just right for brick-making on his claim. He built a brick factory in this
area, giving Stillwater its first bricks. The mounds from which the clay was tak-
en can still been seen. Another brick factory was created in Cactus Canyon in
what is today the Donaldson and Manning Addition. The pits from which the
clay was taken are still there.

STILLWATER’S FIRST HOSPITAL
Dr. W.C. Whittenberg, Stillwater’s first surgeon, established his first hospital in
his fourteen-room home at 404 Duck Street. A few years later he converted
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the Rex Hotel (formerly Linden Hotel) which was catercornered across from the
Fire Station at Ninth and Lewis into a hospital. After World War I Stillwater-
ites took great pride in Dr. Whittenberg’'s new hospital with each room having
its own bath. It was built of brick and stucco, trimmed in white with a some-
what Tudor architectural appearance, and shaded by lovely elm trees. This
third hospital stood on the corner where the Municipal Building now stands at
Eighth and Lewis. (A picture of this third Whittenberg hospital can be seen in
Cunninghams Stillwater: Where Oklahoma Began, page 223.)

AND Finally, because we must stop somewhere, one may view the Houck home,
810 West Connell, which was built in the 1890’s on the (then) Houck farm. This
home is now owned by Mrs. Ray Hull, who has kept the house in its original
state with the charm of that early era expressed in both interior restoration and
furnishings.

Special thanks to the Stillwater Arts and Humanities
Council for permission to reprint the original text of
the pamphlet, A Heritage Trail of Early Stillwater Hous-
es.
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News and Notes

Coming Event: The Study of Civil War Quilts

From November 1 through February 11, 2018, the Stillwater History Museum
at the Sheerar will feature a traveling quilt show featuring The Study of Civil
War Quilts: 1850-1865. Sponsored by the American Quilt Study Group, the
traveling exhibit has some amazing works of art inspired by a historic quilt.

Two other exhibits are currently at the Museum: “Inside the Fallout Shelter:
Civil Defense in Stillwater” and “How Dry Was It? Prohibition in Stillwater”.

The Museum is open from 11:00a until 5:00p, Tuesday through Friday, and
1:00p to 4:00p on Saturday and Sunday.

PCHS is on Facebook

Not sure about details of any upcoming PCHS event or other historical happen-
ings in Payne County? Visit the Payne County Historical Society
Facebook page. Stay tuned for upcoming news about the PCHS website.
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